
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JANUARY 19, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

2.  ROLL CALL  

 

     INVOCATION /  Reverend Charles Jackson with Macedonia Missionary Baptist Church 

 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:             Council Meeting Minutes / January 4, 2016 

                                                          Council Work Session Minutes / January 11, 2016   

 

PRESENTATION:    Daphne Strike Club / Mrs. Ruth Sewell 

                                                       

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

Review minutes / January 11
th

  

1)  Ordinances: 

a)  Appropriation of Funds:  Lott Park Fence / Little Bethel Baptist Church Graveyard / 

Ordinance 2016-02 
  

                     b)   Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation Equipment / Ordinance 2016-03 

 

 c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Sidewalk/Boardwalk Improvements / Ordinance 2016-04 

 

2)   Resolutions: 

  a)  Retirement of Police K-9 Drug Dog / Resolution 2016-03 

 

3)    Motions: 

        a)  To renew the City’s insurance policy with___________________ Company, Inc. 

 

4)    Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / December 2015 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / November 2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections / November 2015 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Lake 

Review minutes / January 4
th

  

 

 1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                            JANUARY 19. 2016                                         PAGE   2 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Conaway  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune        

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – Phillips 

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD – Lake 

Review minutes / October 8, 2015 / November 19, 2015 / December 10, 2015 

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

 

F. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

       

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

          

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

    a)   Events Permit / Shadow Barons Mardi Gras Parade / February 6, 2016 

 

    b)   Approve Chamber of Commerce requests in the attached letter for the 28
th
 Annual  

          Jubilee Festival 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a)     Resolution 2016-03. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Retirement of Police K-9 Drug Dog  

 

 

 

 

 2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                            JANUARY 19. 2016                                         PAGE   3 

 

 

        ORDINANCES:  

 

          2
ND

   READ     

a)     Ordinance 2016-01. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Repealing and Replacing Ordinances 2007-37 and  

                                                                        2007-38 Regarding the Rules and Regulations for   

                                                                        Daphne City Parks  

 

1
ST

 READ 

a)     Ordinance 2016-02. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Lott Park Fence / Little              

                                                                         Bethel Baptist Church Graveyard 

 

b)    Ordinance 2016-03. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation Equipment 

 

c)     Ordinance 2016-04. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Sidewalk/Boardwalk 

Improvements 

 

        

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS       

13.  ADJOURN 

 

Adopted Ordinances and Resolutions from the January 4, 2016 

Council Meeting 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILWOMAN PHILLIPS   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT RUDICELL  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                  

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Rudicell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:   Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott;  

Robin LeJeune, Angie Phillips. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, City 

Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance 

Director/Treasurer;  Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director;  Tonja 

Young, Library Director; Captain Scott Taylor; Police Department; Larry Cooke, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee/DRA; Laurel Anderson; Beautification Committee; Rebecca Trosclair, Beautification 

Committee; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Denis Kearney, IDB; Al 

Guarisco, Village Point Foundation. 

 

Absent: Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; David Carpenter, Police Chief; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director.  

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 Rabbi Dana Evan Kaplan of Springhill Avenue Temple gave the invocation. 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:  
 There being no corrections, the minutes for the December 21, 2015 council meeting stand approved. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:    Proposed Redistricting of the Voting Districts / Ordinance 2015-71 

 

Council President Rudicell Opened the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

Mr. Willie Williams – Pollard Road – handed out a letter from Mr. Fred McBride representing the Baldwin 

County Martin Luther King Celebration Committee, Inc. and the Baldwin County NAACP, and a number of 

concerned citizens of Daphne , (letter attached to these minutes) and spoke regarding the redistricting of the 

minority district, and asked council not to vote on the ordinance until they have heard from Mr. McBride. 

 

Council requested the City Attorney to reach out to Mr. McBride and report back to council. 

 

Council President Rudicell closed the Public Hearing at 6:43 p.m. 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be Monday at 4:30 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

5



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Conaway  

The minutes for the December 21
st
 meeting are in the packet,  and the next meeting will be January 19

th
 . 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet.   The next meeting will be January 19
th

 

after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be February 1
st
.  

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the December 2
nd

 meeting are in the packet. The next meeting will be January 26
th

, 2016 at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board – Phillips 

The minutes for the December 3
rd

 special called meeting and the minutes for the December 16
th

 special 

called meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be January 27
th

 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

A new history series will be on the Four Dominate World Powers –The Islamic State, Russia, China and the 

United States - What can the World Expect?  The series schedule is 10:00 a.m. at the Civic Center on:  

January 13
th 

-
 
Islamic State; January 20

th 
-
 
Russia; January 28

th
 - China and February 3

rd
 - United States. 

  

 E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes of the November 5
th

 special called meeting and the staff report for the December 17
th

 meeting 

are in the packet. 

 

MOTION:  Schedule a Public Hearing date for February 1, 2016 and approve advertising to consider: 

MOTION BY Council Lake to schedule a Public Hearing date for February 1, 2016 and approve 

advertising to consider: 

1.  Revisions to the Land Use and Development Ordinance / Revisions to the Olde Towne District Map 

(The Public Hearing was set for January 18, 2016, but that date is a holiday) 

Recommendation:       Favorable   

 

 

 

 

6



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

 

2.)  Pre-Zone:    Red Barn, LLC 

       Location:    South and West of Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One 

       Present Zoning:   RA, Rural Agricultural, Baldwin County District 15 in the           

                                                     extraterritorial planning jurisdiction of Daphne 

       Proposed Pre-Zoning:  R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District; R-3, High  

                                                  Density Single Family Residential District and R-6, Garde/Patio  

                                      Homes District 

       Recommendation  Unanimous Favorable 

 

3.)  Annexation:   Red Barn, LLC 

       Location:    South and West of Oldfield Subdivision, Phase One 

       Recommendation:  Unanimous Favorable 

 

Seconded by Council Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

  F.   Utility Board – Fry 

There will not be a meeting in December; next meeting will be in January. 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood reported that they are in the process of closing on several pieces of property. 

 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 
No report. 

 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director  – reported adult soccer and youth basketball is starting. 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported the grand opening of Daphne Central Park is Saturday 

January 9
th

 at 10:00 a.m. 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  
a.)  Events Permit / Bayside Medical Missions / September 17, 2016    

  

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the Events Permit for Bayside Medical Missions / September 

17, 2016.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
7



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

    b.) MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to enter into a memorandum of agreement with the City of  

                              Spanish Fort and the Mobile Bay Estuary Program 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Phillips to authorize the Mayor to enter into a memorandum of 

agreement with the City of Spanish Fort and the Mobile Bay Estuary Program.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

c.)  Clarify / Resolution 2015-75 / Deep Water Horizon Funds Expenditure 

At the last council meeting council referred to the signed resolution 2015-75 as not being the one that was 

adopted by council.  Mrs. Hayes explained that it was an honest mistake, not some covert action.  Due to 

the death of her father the day the packet was being put together Mrs. Hayes had to leave, and the assistant 

city clerk was finishing the packet.  Mrs. Hayes was waiting on a revision to the resolution when she had 

to leave, and the assistant city clerk put the revised resolution in the packet.  When the Mrs. Hayes 

returned from bereavement leave she printed out the old version for the Mayor to sign not realizing that 

was not the one that was adopted.  On advice from legal she printed out the right version for the Mayor to 

sign, since that was the one that was adopted, and said it would be good to clarify what happened so it 

could be recorded in the minutes.  Mrs. Hayes said that she would e-mail the correct signed version to 

council after the meeting. 

 

Council was satisfied with this explanation. 

 

Councilman Scott said that it would be a good idea to put all signed ordinances and resolutions in the 

packets so that they could see that the right version was signed by the Mayor. 

 

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Williams – Pollard Road – spoke regarding the Martin Luther King Day Celebration being in Bay 

Minette for 2016. 

 

 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Resolution 2016-01. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Acceptance of Streets & Drainage & Rights- of- Way In the   

                                                                                  Retreat at Tiawasee Subdivision     

 

b.) Resolution 2016-02 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Portion of Lakeshore Drive  

                                                                       In Lakeview Townhomes, Phase II and III  

 

8



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

Resolution 2016-01. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Acceptance of Streets & Drainage & Right-of-Way in the Retreat at 

                                                                          Tiawasee  Subdivision  

Resolution 2016-02. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Portion of Lakeshore Drive in  

                                                                         Lakeview Townhomes, Phase II and III 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2016-01 and 2016-02. Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolutions 2016-01 and 2016-02.   Seconded by Councilman 

Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 
        ORDINANCES:  

          2
ND

   READ     

2
ND

   READ     

a.)   Ordinance 2015-71. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Establishing District Line for the City of Daphne 

 

b.)   Ordinance 2015-74. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation: Russell Steiner / Located Southeast of Interstate 10 and 

                                                                        Blakely River 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-75. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Roof Repair 

 

d).    Ordinance 2015-76. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ADEM / 319 Tiawasee Creek Sub-Watershed Management Project 

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-78. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Additional Lodging Tax Funds: TAP: Gator Alley 

                                                             Turnout / Overlook Drainage / Scenic Improvements 

 

f.)    Ordinance 2015-79. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds: Grant Proposal Writing, Consulting and  

                                                                          Management Services for All City Grants / Grant Management LLC 

 

g.)    Ordinance 2015-80. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Removing Contingency Regarding Funds to Thomas Hospital 

 

9



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Ordinance 2015-71. . . . . . . . Establishing District Lines for the City of Daphne 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to withdraw Ordinance 2015-71 from the agenda. Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Council President Rudicell requested that the letter from Mr. McBride be sent to Cynthia Feirman for review. 

 

 

Ordinance 2015-74. . . . . . .Annexation: Russell Steiner Property / Located Southeast of Interstate 10 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-74. Seconded by 

Councilwoman Phillips.  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2015-74.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Ordinance 2015-75. . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Civic Center Roof Repair 

Ordinance 2015-76. . . . . . . . .ADEM / 319 Tiawasee Cree Sub-Watershed Management Project 

Ordinance 2015-78. . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Additional Lodging Tax Funds: TAP: Gator Alley Turnout /  

                                                  Overlook Drainage / Scenic Improvements 

Ordinance 2015-79. . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds: Grant Proposal Writing, Consulting and Management 

                                                  Services for All City Grants / Grant Management LLC 

Ordinance 2015-80. . . . . . . . . Removing Contingency Regarding Funds to Thomas Hospital  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-75, 2015-76, 2015-78, 2015-79 

and 2015-80.   Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-75.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

10



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-76.  Seconded by Councilwoman Phillips. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-78.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-79.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-80.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Phillips to amend Ordinance 2015-80 to include the phrase that funds are 

subject to future funding by the City Council for each consecutive year. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 

AYE Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Phillips, Rudicell   ABSTAIN    Conaway 

 

MOTION CARRIED  

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

AYE   Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Phillips, Rudicell   ABSTAIN   Conaway 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 1
ST

 READ 

a.)     Ordinance 2016-01. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Repealing and Replacing Ordinances 2007-37 and 2007-38 

                                      Regarding the Rules and Regulations for Daphne City Parks  

 

ORDINANCE 2016-01 WAS MADE A 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

 

 

11



JANUARY 4, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilwoman Conaway – wished everyone a happy New Year.  She thanked the residents of Park City for 

their concern for Park City. 

 

Councilman Lake – wished everyone a happy New Year.  He spoke regarding the Governor spending $1 

million of BP funds to refurbish the Governor’s mansion when he consistently rejected Daphne’s request to use 

those funds by saying you can use them for economic development.  He felt this was unfair since refurbishing 

the Governor’s mansion is not economic development. 

 

Councilman Fry – thanked everyone for coming out, and wished everyone a healthy and prosperous New Year.  

He said he hopes to see everyone at the ribbon cutting for Daphne Central Park. He said it is a nice facility and 

everyone should check it out. 

 

 Councilman Scott – wished everyone a happy New Year, and thanked everyone for their input.  He invited all 

to come out to Daphne Central Park. 

 

Councilman LeJeune – wished everyone a happy New Year, and reminded everyone Mardi Gras day is 

February 9
th

.  

 

Councilwoman Phillips – wished everyone a happy New Year, and thanked Mr. Williams for being diligent on 

the redistricting issue.  She said there is no ill intent on the part of the council.   She thanked him for the 

invitation to the MLK festivities. 

 

Councilwoman Rudicell – gave the work session agenda which will consist of polling places, and council and 

mayor salary.  For the special called council meeting on January 25
th

 they will discuss the new recreation 

facilities, and in March they will discuss employee insurance.  

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn Seconded by Councilwoman Phillips. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:25 

P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer                          

                                            

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes ,     Pat Rudicell,     

City Clerk       Council President 

12



13



14



JANUARY 11, 2016 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; 

Angie Phillips.  

 

ABSENT:  Randy Fry. 

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin, Boucher, City Attorney; Kelli 

Kichler, Finance Director; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory Committee. 

 

Absent: Mayor Haygood. 

 

Council President Rudicell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. DISCUSS VOTING PLACES 

Councilman LeJeune said he was in favor of having two voting places in the city for the election. 

 

The City Attorney reported that he was reading a section of the Code of Alabama regarding voting places 

which says that you can either have one or seven voting places.  He said he would research this further and 

report back. 

 

Councilman Lake said that they should wait until the redistricting ordinance has passed before deciding on the 

voting places. 

 

Council President Rudicell said that the redistricting ordinance will not be on the agenda until Mr. Ross has 

talked with Mr. McBride regarding the minority district. 

 

2.  DISCUSS COUNCIL & MAYOR SALARY & COMPENSATION 

Council would like the mayor and council’s pay cycle to be the same as the city employees.   

 

Council discussed the council benefit of participating in the city’s medical insurance.  Councilman LeJeune 

said instead of the city paying for the medical insurance he would rather give an increase in pay so they could 

purchase their own. 

 

Ms. Kichler suggested that councilmembers be allowed to purchase medical insurance at the city’s rate. 

 

Councilman Scott said that he would like to see a small increase in salary to compensate for the insurance. 

 

Consensus of council is to have the Finance Committee look at this issue. 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:00 

P.M. 
 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Pat Rudicell,                                                                 

City Clerk      Council President 

15



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
JANUARY 11, 2015 

4:30 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
The meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m.  Present were Councilwoman Mrs. Conaway, Councilwoman 
Angie Phillips, Councilman Ron Scott, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Councilman John Lake, Councilman Robin 
LeJeune,  Finance Director Kelli Kichler, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson, Human Resource Director Vickie 
Hinman, Revenue Officer Jamie Smith, Accounting Technician Sue Moody, and City Attorney Kevin Boucher.  
Chairman Randy Fry, Mayor Dane Haygood, and Revenue Officer Jamie Smith were absent.  Councilman 
Robin LeJeune arrived at 5:00 p.m.. 
 
Also in attendance were, Public Works Director Richard Johnson, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, 
Recreation Director David McKelroy, City Clerk Rebecca Hayes, Community Development Director Adrienne 
Jones, and Mr. Larry Cooke, BZA.  
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
A. Insurance Renewal Proposals: (Motion) 
1. Bancorp South Insurance Co., Mr. Warren Hopper  

Mr. Hopper discussed the coverage for his proposal on the property/equipment policy.  Mr. Hopper noted the 
annual premium for the Property, Equipment and Mechanical Breakdown policy is $199,954.  Mr. Hopper 
reviewed the wind and hail coverage for the policy he was presenting has a 2% deductible for all storms. 
 
       2. John A. Robertson Agency, Mr. Robbie Robertson  
Mr. Robbie Robertson reviewed his proposal for the following policy coverage’s for the City: 
Annual premium for the Property, Equipment, and Mechanical Breakdown policy is $192,191.  Mr. 
Robertson also included the following policies. 

 Generality Liability 

 Public Officials Liability 

 Law Enforcement Liability 

 Employee Benefit Liability 

 Excess Liability 

 Automobile 

COVERAGE TYPE Robertson Insurance Co., Inc. BanCorp South Ins Services, Inc.

GENERAL LIABILITY: $150,218.00 Did not Quote

PUBLIC OFFICIALS LIABILITY included in General Liability Did not Quote

LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY included in General Liability Did not Quote

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY included in General Liability Did not Quote

EXCESS LIABILITY included in General Liability Did not Quote

VEHICLE INSURANCE $204,963.00 Did not Quote

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT $186,936.00 $197,954.00

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN $5,255.00 $2,000.00

$192,191.00 $199,954.00

TOTAL ANNUAL POLICY $542,117.00 -$                                                          

FY2016 INSURANCE PROPOSAL COMPARISON

 
 
Mrs. Henson stated that a motion needs to be made to re-new insurance coverage for the City since the current 
coverage will expire on February 26, 2016.  Mr. Scott noted that Mr. Fry would have time to  look over the 
proposals prior to the next Council meeting.   Discussion continued that a motion would be made at the Council 
meeting.   

MOTION  to recommend to Council to renew the City’s insurance policy with 
________________________Company, Inc. .   

16



Finance Minutes.doc   

 
 
 

II.      BUSINESS LICENSE REPORT 
 

1. Report: New Business Licenses – December, 2015    
      
The Business Licenses Report was included in the packet. Total business license issued YTD is 4646 -  up 291 
from last year  
 

 55  - Total Business License issued in  December 2015  -  down 21 from December 2014 ( 76      

licenses issued).   
  13  - Renewals  

  26 - New businesses with _7__ of those having a physical location in Daphne  
  16 - Prior year licenses.   
 
Code enforcement issued 8 warnings resulting in businesses becoming compliant and $661 in revenue.   
 
Ms. Kichler stated that Mrs. Jamie Smith, Revenue Officer was not able to attend the meeting and asked her to 
review the reports.  Ms. Kichler noted that since there had been discussion on obtaining statistical employment 
information from businesses located in Daphne that a survey was sent out to the top 30 taxpayers to request 
how many employees each business has.  Mrs. Kichler stated this statistical information will be used for 
financial reporting. 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 

Planting Coordinator     Posting: 1/6 – 1/20 

Planner (Community Development)    Re-posting 

Executive Assistant     2
nd

 interviews 

Sr. HR Specialist      2
nd

 interviews 

Asst. City Clerk      2
nd

 interviews 

Volunteer Coordinator     Reviewing applications 

Public Works Supervisor (Grounds)   DOH: 1/7/2016 

Code Enforcement Officer     Internal transfer: 1/7/16  

    

Mrs. Hinman noted the next Safety Committee meeting is January 27 @ 10:00 a.m.. 
 

HR projects/meetings: 
Presentation of Long Term Disability to all employees & completion of forms 
Updating City pay scale for non-director rate increase effective Jan. 7 and to be in paycheck on Jan. 27 
Processing W-2’s and Affordable Care Act required documentation 
Interviews for Asst. City Clerk, Executive Asst. to Mayor, & Sr. HR Specialist positions 
 
Mrs. Hinman reviewed the overtime report for the first quarter of FY2016. Total Overtime YTD - $113,161.  Mrs. 
Hinman noted that December included several City holiday events including Christmas activities and parades. 

 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A. Approve previous months minutes 
  

The previous minutes were approved. 

17



Finance Minutes.doc   

 
 

B. Financial Reports 
 

1. Treasurer’s Report:  November, 2015 
 

    Mrs. Henson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $11,232,639                   

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $ 1,619,429     

 Total Restricted Funds - $ 9,016,296 

 Total City Funds - $ 20,248,935 

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 5.1 months 
compared to the previous year -  4.4  months 

 
Ms. Kichler stated that approximately $250,000 ATRIP grant monies was received so the Capital Reserve fund 
is up from last month.  Ms. Kichler reviewed the Encumbrance report and noted that most of the FY2015 
Encumbrances should clear out in the next couple months. 
      .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of November, 2015 Total Unrestricted Funds - $11,232,639             
and Total City Funds - $20,248,935 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: November, 2015 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,157,742  was collected for November 
2015: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $110,571.80          

 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 5%  
 
Discussion continued on the economy and potential stock market changes.  
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  November, 2015 

 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for November 2015 were 
$77,075  which is down $214  from November’s 2014’s collections of $77,289.  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $12,212     

 Percentage change YTD from last year’s collections:  $7,530 +  4.7% 
 
 

 4.  Lodging Tax Fund : Statement of Rev over Exp, December ,2015  
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Lodging Tax Statement of Revenues over Expenditure report for December, 2015.  
Mrs. Henson noted the following balances: 

 Unreserved balance for Bayfront related purchases  - $ 2,101,833         

 Recreation related purchases  -  $ 842,657 

 
 

5.  Correction/Court Fund Report, November, 2015 
 
Mrs. Henson reviewed the Correction/ Court Fund Report and reported that no transfers were required for 
October or November 2015 to the court  portion of the fund to the corrections for the purchase of inmate meals.   
 

 Court balance - $191,191 

 Corrections balance - $1,896 
 
 

 
 

18



Finance Minutes.doc   

  6. General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, October 2015  
   7.  General Fund Balance Sheet, October 2015  
   8.  General Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, October 2015 
           9.  Debt Service Fund Statement of Rev Over Exp, December 2015 
         10.  Debt Service Summary Activity for General Fund through December 2015 
         11.  Debt Service Summary Activity for Enterprise Funds through December 2015  
         12.  Agency Funds Combining Statement of Assets &  Liabilities, October 2015  
         13.  Special Revenue Funds Balance Sheet, October, 2015 
         14. Special Revenue Funds Rev, Exp&Changes  in Fund Balance, October 2015 
         15. Capital Projects Funds Balance Sheet, October 2015  
         16. Capital Projects Funds Statement of Rev Over Exp, October 2015 
         17. Enterprise Funds Statement of Net Position, October, 2015  
         18. Enterprise Funds Stmt of Rev, Exp, & Changes in Net Position, October 2015 
 
Ms. Kichler reviewed the financial reports presented in the packet: 
 
General Fund 
Net change in the General Fund balance was $171,621.    
 
Debt Service Fund 
Discussion was made on debt service payments and debt maturity dates.  Ms. Kichler stated that $696,436 
(principle) and $201,933 (interest) was paid in debt payments through December 2015 and the balance of debt 
is $35,387,432 (excluding Capital Leases - $ 1,288,927).  Remaining Debt payments for FY2016 Warrants and 
Leases is $3,262,821.  Ms. Kichler noted that two 2011 leases were recently paid off. 
 
Agency Funds 
Fund balance for Agency Funds - $99,083. 
 
Special Revenue Funds 
FEMA Rain Event projects YTD:  $652,055.   
 
Capital Projects Funds 
Capital Reserve Fund balance - $1,756,372.      
 
Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise Fund balances as follows:   

 Solid Waste (Garbage & Recycling) – $24,453 

 Civic Center – ($3,765) 

 Bayfront – ($2,075) 

 
          19. Bills Paid Reports –  December, 2015 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. 
 

C. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 
1. Lott Park Fence / Little Bethel Baptist Church Graveyard  -  $16,800  

Mr. Johnson reviewed the low quote for the Lott Park fence - $16,800.  Mr. Johnson noted that the fence will 
look like the fence at Centennial park and will be powder coated aluminum.  Discussion continued that this fence 
will be on City property and if Little Bethel Baptist Church obtains funding to continue the same type fencing on 
the church property their cost would be $7,150.  Mrs. Conaway noted she felt like they could get funding from 
other sources in order to install the remaining fencing around the graveyard.  Mr. Johnson noted the church’s 
fencing was more expensive because it included gates for graveyard access. 
 

MOTION BY Mr.  Lake  to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $ 16,800  from Lodging Tax  for  fencing at Lott Park .  
Seconded by Mrs. Conaway .  Motion carried. 

19



Finance Minutes.doc   

 
 

2. Recreation Fitness Equipment (purchase instead of Lease)-$15,155 
 
Ms. Kichler stated the Mayor had found a financing source with a reasonable interest rate so this item needed to 
be removed off the agenda.  The equipment would be financed as budgeted. 

 
3. Recreation Equipment budgeted out of Lodging Tax Fund - $57,500  

 
Mr. Scott discussed the recreation equipment budgeted to come out of Lodging Tax fund in the FY2016 Budget.  
Mrs. Henson noted there had been discussion at a previous Finance meeting about amending the Lodging Tax 
Ordinance to allow equipment purchases (Ord 2014-06 Section 9. (d) states “does not include such items as 
trucks or the maintenance of fields”) then a recommendation was made to find another funding source.  
Discussion continued that the purpose of the allocated Recreation Lodging Tax funds per the ordinance was to 
restrict the funds to ground related capital purchases/improvements and not include equipment purchases. 
 

MOTION BY Mr.  Lake to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $57,500  from General Fund for the purchase of the following 
recreation equipment:  Drag Machine-$18,000, John Deere Gator Utility Vehicle-$7,500, 
Chemical Sprayer-$20,000, John Deere 72” Z-Trak Mower-$12,000 .  Seconded by Mr. 
Rudicell .  Motion carried. 
 

4. Sidewalks: Lake Forest-Ridgewood  Dr: (Routes-North-$43,500+South-$38,500) $82,000   
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the sidewalk project and noted that an appropriation in the amount of $82,000 will be 
needed to complete the project.  Discussion continued on sidewalks constructed in Lake Forest and the need for 
these two sections to be added.  Ms. Kichler noted that $50,000 (US98 sidewalk) was currently included in the 
FY2016 Budget and that $105,000 was also included in the budget as the City’s match for the Tap Grant project 
on County Road 13-Lawson/Champions Way to Whispering Pines. Mr. Scott discussed using Surplus Sale 
monies to fund the two sidewalk projects on Ridgewood Drive.  ($59,005 was received for the first Surplus Sale in 

FY2016 and there is a pending sale for 7 Ford Crown Vic vehicles). 

 

MOTION BY Mr.  Lake  to recommend to Council to adopt the Ordinance amending the 
budget to appropriate  $82,000  from General Fund revenues from FY2016 Surplus 
Sales  for two Lake Forest Sidewalk projects on Ridgewood Drive:   
• North- Plaza Circle to Worchester Drive (3,200 LF)- $43,500 
• South- Montclair Loop to Dunbar Loop (2,800 LF)  - $38,500    
Seconded by Mrs. Conaway .  Motion carried. 

 

D. Retirement of Police K-9 Drug Dog  (Resolution) 
 
Mrs. Henson presented a resolution to retire the K-9 dog (DJ).  Mrs. Henson noted when the previous K-9 dog 
was retired he was also transferred into his handlers care.  Discussion continued on what an asset DJ had been 
to the City and his assistance in previous drug cases.   
 

MOTION BY Mr. Lake  to recommend to Council to adopt the Resolution to approve the 
retirement of the Police K-9 Dog and transfer to his handler, Jeff Sulzmann .  Seconded 
by Mrs.  Phillips .  Motion carried. 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. MayDay Boat Ramp update  
 
Mr. Rudicell discussed he wanted any information available on the MayDay Boat ramp issues including any 
other boat ramp location options. Mr. Rudicell noted he knew Mrs. Campbell would not be available to attend the 

20



Finance Minutes.doc   

February Work Session meeting.  Mr. Johnson offered to attend the Work Session for Mrs. Campbell.  Mr. 
LeJeune noted he had requested that Mr. Britton Bonner, City Grant attorney advise on any grant options.  Mr. 
Scott asked if the City were to remove the MayDay boat ramp could the monies that have to be paid back the 
Department of Conservation & Natural Resources ($189,279) be paid back over time.  Mrs. Campbell stated she 
had asked that question a couple times but would follow up on getting an answer.  Discussion continued on this 
being discussed at the February Work Session and at the Buildings and Property Meeting. 
 

B. BayFront Master Plan Contract Update 
 
Mr. Scott asked MR. Johnson to review the Bayfront Master Plan status.  Mr. Johnson stated he had just 
become aware that he needed to prepare a conceptual scope of the project.  Mr. Johnson stated he would keep 
everyone updated on the progress on the project.  Mrs. Campbell stated she could provide an overlay of the 
wetlands for the scope. 

 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:03 p.m.  

 
 
 
 

21



22



23



24



25



26



 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, January 4, 2016 

4:30 PM 

Bayfront Park Scardamalia Pavilion 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman John Lake (Chairman)(arrived at 4:55 p.m.) ; Councilman Randy Fry; 

Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Councilman Ron Scott; Councilman Robin 

LeJeune; Councilwoman Angie Phillips 

Also Present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk (recording secretary); Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; 

BJ Eringman, Deputy Director Public Works; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Ashley Campbell, 

Environmental Programs Manager; David McKelroy, Director Recreation; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation;  

Absent: Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 

There being a quorum present Councilwoman Conaway, in the absence of the Chairman 

Councilman Lake, called the meeting to order at 4:40 pm. 

1. Public Participation 

No one spoke. 

 

2. Approval of Minutes: December 7, 2015 

There were no amendments requested to the minutes. Minutes stand as written. 

 

3. Daphne Central Park Report: Richard Johnson 

Richard Johnson stated the disc golf course is being used and the fence is installed. Short term plans are 

to landscape area and long term they are looking at planting trees. They are starting to look at west side 

plans – to continue trails and incorporate fencing. Councilman Scott mentioned how pleased he is with 

the park and sees residents enjoying it.  

 

4. Building Inspection Monthly Reports (December):  Ashley Campbell 

 Total Building Permits  / 10 

 Total Permit Fees / $14,290 

 Total CO’s / 14 

 10 New Home Permits  

 Total Fees / $46,419 

  

5. Surplus Property: Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant  

 

No surplus property to consider. 

 

6. Civic Center, Bayfront, and CVB report (December): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed the December report. 

Civic Center Report: 

 December 2015 revenue for the Civic Center totaled $12,944.50 / Increase from November 2014 

FY 2015-2016 YTD Actual Revenue / $42,693 / Above FY2014-2015 

 FY 2015 Year End Revenue / $156,672 

 December 2015 Deposits / $10,233 

 FY 2015-2016 Year-to-date Deposits /  $27,993 

27



BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE                JANUARY 4, 2016                            Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Bayfront Park Pavilion Report: 

 December 2015 Revenue / $7,664 / Down from 2014 

 FY 2015-2016 YTD Actual Revenue / $21,310 / Down from 2014-2015 

 FY 2014-2015 Year End Revenue  / $67,842 

 December 2015 Deposits / $2,614 

 2015-2016 YTD Deposits / $10,801  

 

Mrs. Thigpen mentioned the new window installation in the building has been completed, and new 

flooring in the kitchen area has been done. She mentioned updating the bar countertop is the next project. 

 

There is a hold up of the Johnson Control Contract until legal has had a chance to look over the contract 

and check to see if this should be bid out since it is over $15,000.  Councilman Lake said that he thinks it 

comes under the heading of professional services and does not have to be bid out. 

 

The committee discussed the digital sign at the point below KFC.  Mrs. Thigpen had a drawing of what it 

might look like.  The cost would be $36-40,000 if the contractor has to build the brick wall; $24-28,000 if 

it is done in-house.   

 

Councilman Lake is concerned that the digital sign is in violation of the Land Use Ordinance, and he is in 

favor of using the money for way fare signs on I-10.  Richard Johnson said that he has not as yet spoken 

with anyone at ALDOT regarding signage on I-10. 

 

Councilman Fry said that they can pursue both signs. 

 

Consensus is for the issue to come back to the committee next month with different designs. 

 

David McKelroy said that they are finishing up the new flooring at the Senior Center, and it is similar to 

the flooring at the Bayfront Pavilion. 

 

OLD BUISINESS 

7. Village Point Foundation – Bayfront Properties: Selena Vaughn 

Councilman Fry asked that an ordinance appropriating funds for the development of the Master Plan and 

design for the amphitheater be on the Finance agenda. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

No new business to discuss. 

 

8.  Any Other Business 

Ashley Campbell spoke regarding 22 acres the city is thinking about purchasing, and she said it is 

appraised at $374,000 and thinks an offer of $200,000 is appropriate.  They have asked that a proposal 

be sent to the Mayor and Council.  She said that the city now owns the Steiner property which is 

unbelievably gorgeous.  They are applying for a Forever Wild grant to extend Gator Alley.  After the 

contracts are done there will be a pre-construction meeting set up by January 15th, and after that they will 

have to be mobilized within 10 days.  They will put up a sign to let everyone know what is going on.   

 

Richard Johnson said that someone took out about 40 linear feet of Gator Alley, but the individual was 

well insured and the insurance company will pay for all the damage.  He reported that 100% of the Village 

Point Park Preserve trail extension is complete.   

 

Ashely said that the Tiawasee stream restoration will begin soon.  Mr. Johnson mentioned that the ribbon 

cutting for Daphne Central Park is Saturday at 10:00 a.m. 

 

28



BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE                JANUARY 4, 2016                            Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

     Gazebos   

Mr. Johnson said that three (3) gazebos have been ordered, but they are the wrong size.  It has been 

suggested that the gazebo for May Day Park be used at Daphne Central Park and a larger one ordered for 

May Day Park.  The price of the gazebos did not include the foundations so there will have to be an 

ordinance appropriating funds for the foundations at about $3,000. 

 

 

9)   Next Meeting 

The next meeting will be February 1, 2016. 

 

 

With no further business to discuss              the meeting was adjourned at 5:25 p.m.  

29



Daphne Public Library Board   
 
 

Library Board - Meeting Minutes 
 

October 8, 2015 
 
 
 

In Attendance: 
 
Board Chair Jim Morris; Library Board Members Nancy Volovecky and Windrila Longmire; & Kathi Alsip.  
FODL President Karen Kyzar; and Library Director Tonja Young.   
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
Meeting called to order at 4:03 pm by Chair Jim Morris.   
 
3)  New Business: 
 
The September minutes were read.  Windrila made a motion to approve the minutes; motion seconded 
by Nancy.  Motion passed. 
 
The Board received a letter of resignation from Board Member Andre LaPalme.  He is now working at the 
Junior College in Bay Minette and has a difficult time reaching the meetings.  Andre has been a good 
Board Member and Tonja stated that perhaps he might serve again in the future.  Jim stated that a new 
member should be nominated and a vote taken to fill the position. 
 
Tonja went over the statistics and discussed new shelving being ordered with State Aid funds.  She also 
discussed the great assistance the library has been receiving from City IT personnel Brent. 
 
2)   Old Business: 
 
Jim discussed the Foundation meeting that he attended, mentioning new members Pam Yelding and 
Bridgette hill.  He discussed the Foundation’s current project, with drawings, schematics and power point 
presentation being prepared.  Nancy had a question about donors.  Tonja stated that Dee was conducting 
meetings about donors to approach. 
 
Jim stated that the WWI speaking events had gone very well.  Tonja also stated that there was positive 
public response and that the speaking events had been very interesting and informative.  She received 
numerous positive comments about the speaking events from library patrons. 
 
4)  Friends of the Daphne Library Participation:  
 
Karen discussed the Friends Book Sale held on September 26, which earned $1,100.  She also discussed 
the annual staff appreciation Christmas luncheon.  As well, the FODL Board has approved paying a $200 
honorarium for each of the “Four Great Powers” speakers this winter. 
 
6) Public Participation: 
 
None. 

30



 
7)  Adjourn: 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:45 pm. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, November 18, 2015. 
 
 
 

31



Daphne Public Library Board   
 
 

Library Board - Meeting Minutes 
 

November 19, 2015 
 
 
 

In Attendance: 
 
Board Chair Jim Morris; Library Board Member Windrila Longmire. City Council Liaison Pat Rudicell; 
Library Director Tonja Young.   
 
No quorum.  No meeting held. 

32



Daphne Public Library Board   
 
 

Library Board - Meeting Minutes 
 

December 10, 2015 
 
 
 

In Attendance: 
 
Board Chair Jim Morris; Library Board Members Nancy Volovecky and Kathi Alsip; Library Director Tonja 
Young.   
 
1) Call to Order: 
 
Meeting called to order at 4:04 pm by Chair Jim Morris.   
 
3)  New Business: 
 
The October minutes were read.  Jim made a motion to approve the minutes; motion seconded by Nancy.  
Motion passed. 
 
There were no November minutes because the meeting did not have a quorum. 
 
Tonja discussed statistics for November and stated that the Young Adult and Children’s programs were 
doing very well.  These two departments also have multiple special events planned for December 
including children’s Christmas parties, an Ornament Make-n-Take, a Gift Make-n-Take, Santa Stories, 
Family Christmas Movie Night, and a special Teen Art Class. 
 
2)   Old Business: 
 
Jim discussed the new history series: The Four Dominant World Powers: The Islamic State, Russia, China, 
and the United States – What Can the World Expect? 
 
Tonja will make flyers for the series, emailing them to all of last year’s attendees as well as press release 
sources.  Nancy will post flyers at various local colleges and universities.   
 
A motion was made to elect Rhett Beyer to the Library Board.  The members read over his bio.  Jim made 
a nomination and Nancy seconded.  The vote passed. 
 
Jim stated that the Library Foundation meeting was postponed until January so he wouldn’t have an 
update until then.   
 
4)  Friends of the Daphne Library Participation:  
 
None. 
 
6) Public Participation: 
 
None. 

33



 
7)  Adjourn: 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:36 pm. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by T. Young, January 13, 2016. 
 
 
 

34



35



36



 

 

RESOLUTION 2016 - 03 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING DISPOSITION 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Police Department of the City of Daphne has determined that DJ, Police Drug 
Canine, is ready for retirement and therefore no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  
and 

 

WHEREAS, DJ has been a Police Canine for 7 years; and 
 

WHEREAS, DJ has been requested to be adopted by his handler, Patrol Officer Jeff Sulzmann. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that:  

 
1- The Police Drug Canine, DJ, is hereby retired and declared no longer required for 

public or municipal purposes; and 
 
2- In consideration of $ 1.00 the Mayor is hereby authorized to direct the transfer of DJ to 

Jeff Sulzmann. 
 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this            day of          , 2016 
       
                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

     _________________________________ 

                                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
                

 

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

37



38



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2016-01 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING ORDINANCES 2007-37 and 2007-38 OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA   

REGARDING THE RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR DAPHNE CITY PARKS 

  

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 15, Section 15-10 of the City of Daphne Municipal Code establishes rules 

and regulations relating to the operation and usage of Daphne City Parks; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance 2007-37 and 2007-38 promulgate the rules and regulations for the City 

of Daphne Parks; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has undertaken a comprehensive review of the rules and 

regulations governing City parks with the intent of revising any and all provisions to improve the health, 

safety, and enjoyment of park patrons; 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has determined that it is in the best interests of its citizens to 

revise, combine and update certain provisions relating to the use of park areas or facilities as such relates 

to motorized vehicles, pets and commercial watercraft; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to amend Chapter 15, Section 15-10 to better serve and 

protect its citizens and ensure proper operation and usage of City parks.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA: 

 

 Chapter 15, Section 15-10 of the City of Daphne Municipal Code is hereby amended to read and 

Ordinances 2007-37 and 2007-38 is hereby repealed and replaced with the following:  

 

SECTION 1:   DAPHNE CITY PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS 

General Park Rules 

1.  City parks will open at sunrise and close at sunset, with the exception of parks which 

have lighting specifically designed for night activities and not merely parking. 

 2.   No alcoholic beverages are allowed in any parks. 

 3.   No person shall possess a weapon or discharge any weapon or explosive in a park or into 

a park from beyond the park boundaries to the maximum extent allowable by law. 

 4.   No person shall deposit, drop or abandon garbage, rubbish, waste or any other kind of 

litter in or upon any waters or land within a park. 

39



 5.   It shall be unlawful for any person to bring into, use or discard any glass beverage 

container, including any soft drink, beer, water bottles, drinking glasses or drinking cups 

made of glass and any and all similar beverage containers in any park. 

 6.   Fires are allowed in cooking grills in designated areas only, Open “camp” fires are 

prohibited, unless permitted in writing by the Daphne Fire Department. 

 7.   No person shall distribute or disseminate leaflets, pamphlets or other printed material or 

use any mechanical device in a park for soliciting or advertising, except upon prior 

written consent of the City.  No person shall carry on or conduct any business or service 

within a park without the prior written approval of the City. 

 8.   All camping activities shall be confined to designated areas in a park. 

 9. Hitting golf balls at any City park is strictly prohibited. 

 10.   No person shall launch, land or leave unattended any boat, canoe, raft or other watercraft 

upon any water, bay, lagoon, lake or pond within a park except at locations and times 

designated for that purpose.  No person shall operate any watercraft in a designated 

swimming area or other prohibited area or in violation of Alabama State Law. 

 11.   No person shall use any marine areas or marine facilities, including, but not limited to, 

boat launches, docks, piers, wharfs, landings, moorings, floats, or shorelines within the 

limits of a park for commercial purposes or for commercial watercraft. For purposes of 

this section, “commercial watercraft” shall mean and include any and all boats, 

houseboats, motorboats, yachts, cruisers, inflatables, barges, vessels, canoes, rafts, jet 

skis, wet bikes and/or any other watercraft that is self-propelled or designed to be 

propelled by the use of internal combustion engines or electric motors.  

 12.   No person shall wade or swim within a park except at beaches designated for that 

purpose and then only between sunrise and sunset or at such hours as may be designated 

by the City. 

 13.   No person shall fish in a park in violation of Alabama State Law or in any area 

designated as “no fishing”. 

 14.   No person shall operate a bicycle except on designated bikeways and roadways in a park. 

 15.   No person shall operate any motorized vehicle within a park except on roadways, parking 

areas, or other designated locations.  The speed limit shall be 15 MPH within the parks. 

For purposes of this rule, “motorized vehicle” shall mean and include any and all 

automobiles, motorcycles, mobile trailers, trucks, truck tractors, semitrailers, trailers 

and/or any other device that is self-propelled or drawn in, upon, or by which any person 

or property is or may be transported or drawn upon any trail, path, road, or highway.  

 16.   No person shall intentionally kill, trap, hunt, pursue or in any manner disturb or cause to 

be disturbed any species of wildlife within a park, except that fishing will be permitted in 

designated areas.   

40



 17.   No person shall remove, leave or deposit any animal, living or dead, from a park, and any 

animal so taken or left will be considered contraband and subject to seizure and 

confiscation.   

 18.   No person shall intentionally feed any species of wildlife within a park.   

 19.   No person shall bring a dog, cat or other pet into a park unless caged or kept on a leash 

not more than six feet in length.  All dogs must be under the control and within sight of 

owners/custodians at all times.  All owners/custodians are legally and financially 

responsible for their dog’s behavior.  All users of the Park do so at their own risk and 

assume all liability. 

20.        It shall be unlawful for any person to allow any dog, cat or other pet under his or 

her ownership, care, custody or control to defecate in a park without removing the 

defecation to a proper trash receptacle.  

 

21.        No person shall allow any dog, cat or other pet under his or her ownership, care,  

 custody or control to disturb, annoy or harass any patrons of the park, wildlife,  

 or other pets.  

  

 22.   No person shall tether any animal to a tree or other plant.  No person shall bring a dog, 

cat, or other pet into a park designated as an unauthorized area (playgrounds, athletic 

event parks). 

Dog Park Rules – In addition to the Rules stated above, the following rules also apply within the     

                            confines of the Dog Park.  

 

1.  There is a limit of three (3) dogs per person.  Owners/custodians must carry a leash for each 

dog and dogs may not be left unattended. 

 

2. All dogs must be on a leash until inside the Park and upon leaving the Park. 

 

3. There will absolutely be no female dogs in heat allowed inside the Park. 

 

4. Each owner/custodian is responsible for cleaning up and properly disposing of dog 

excrement. 

  

5. A dog must be removed from the Park at the first sign of aggression. 

 

6. All dogs must wear a collar displaying current vaccination tags and current registration. 

 

7. No collars that are visibly studded are permitted. 

 

8. All children must be supervised and accompanied by an adult at all times.  Children must not 

play in the Dog Park.  The Daphne Dog Park is designed expressly for the recreation of dogs 

and the City of Daphne is not responsible for injuries to children. 

41



 

9. No dogs under the age of four (4) months are allowed in the Park. 

 

10. No food - human or pet - shall be allowed inside the Park. 

 

11. All owners/custodians must stop their dog(s) from digging and shall fill any holes made by 

their dog(s). 

 

12. The small dog area is reserved for dogs up to twenty-five (25) pounds.  Small dogs are 

allowed in the large dog area, but no large dogs shall be allowed in the small dog area. 

 SECTION II:   SEVERABILITY 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or 

part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 SECTION III:  REPEALER 

 Ordinances 2007-37 and 2007-38 and all other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with 

the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

SECTION IV:   EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final passage and 

publication as required by law. 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA ON THE __     DAY OF ___________, 2016.     

             

             

             

       _____________________________________ 

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

    

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

42



ORDINANCE 2016 – 02 
 

APPROPRIATION FOR: FENCE AT LOTT PARK:  BETWEEN LOTT PARK 
AND LITTLE BETHEL BAPTIST CHURCH GRAVEYARD PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-48 sets forth an allocation of Lodging Tax proceeds 
that may be used for certain recreational grounds capital improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lott Park fencing project meets such recreational grounds capital 
criteria; and  
 
WHEREAS, the fence is needed for safety purposes to restrict park activities from 
entering the Little Bethel Baptist Church graveyard property: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget is hereby amended to include 
an appropriation from the Lodging Tax Fund for installation of a fence on the Lott 
Park property adjacent to the Little Bethel Baptist Church graveyard property in the 
amount of $16,800.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ___ day of ______, 2016. 
 
 
 
             

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

43



44



45



46



ORDINANCE 2016 - 03 
 

Recreation Equipment :  Amend Budget from Lodging Tax Appropriation to 
General Fund Appropriation 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, recreation equipment in the amount of $57,500 was included in the 
Lodging Tax FY2016 Budget to purchase the following equipment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current Lodging Tax Ordinance (Ord 2014-06) does not allow this 
type equipment purchased without further Council approval, and 
 
WHEREAS, the recreation equipment purchase can be funded from the General 
Fund.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $57,500 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget for the Recreation 
equipment: 

 Drag Machine-$18,000  

 John Deere Gator Utility Vehicle-$7,500  

 Chemical Sprayer-$20,000  

 John Deere 72” Z-Trak Mower-$12,000 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this                    day of                              , 2016. 
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood,  Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

47



ORDINANCE 2016-04 
 

Sidewalk/Boardwalk Improvements:  Lake Forest – Ridgewood Drive:     

North- Plaza Circle to Worchester Drive & South- Montclair Loop to Dunbar Loop 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain sidewalk installations are needed for safe passage along City 

streets including the following locations in Lake Forest on Ridgewood Drive:         
 North- Plaza Circle to Worchester Drive (3,200 LF) 

 South- Montclair Loop to Dunbar Loop (2,800 LF) 
 
WHEREAS, surplus sale monies from FY2016 Surplus Sales will be available for 
funding such Sidewalk/Boardwalk projects. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $82,000 from the General Fund Surplus Sale 
revenues are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget 
for Sidewalk/Boardwalk Improvements in Lake Forest on Ridgewood Drive: North- 

Plaza Circle to Worchester Drive & South- Montclair Loop to Dunbar Loop. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2016. 
 

                                                                                                                                                     
 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A.  Hayes, City Clerk 

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



 

 

ADOPTED  

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

FROM THE 

JANUARY 4, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



1 

 

AMENDED ORDINANCE FROM THE JANURY 4, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 

WHICH WILL BE SIGNED BY MAYOR HAYGOOD 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-80 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE REMOVING CONTINGENCY REGARDING FUNDS TO THOMAS 

HOSPITAL FOUNDATION BY THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 budget on 

October 5, 2015; and 

 WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget, the City Council 

has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of 

the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 

 WHEREAS,  a policy has been established by the City Council in Ordinances 2015-16 

and 2015-45 that all outside entities, providing public benefit, but not direct financial benefit to 

the City, that request funding from the City adhere to the tenets of the Community Grant 

Program; and 

 WHEREAS,  the City Council by Amendment 102 of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, made 

provision for the payment of $30,000 a year for five (5) years to Thomas Hospital Foundation for 

the establishment of a free standing emergency room; and 

 WHEREAS, said Amendment 102 was passed with a contingency requiring that the free 

standing emergency room be annexed into the City before the funds would be paid; and 

 WHEREAS, more than five (5) members of the City Council considered this 

appropriation to be an exception to the terms and conditions of the Community Grants Program 

based on extraordinary circumstances shown; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to remove the contingency; and    

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

a. That funds be and are hereby appropriated to Thomas Hospital Foundation in the 

amount of $150,000.00 payable at the rate of $30,000.00 per year with the initial 

$30,000.00 payment to be made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. 

b. That the sum of $120,000.00 shall be payable to Thomas Hospital Foundation at 

the rate of $30,000.00 per year commencing with the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget and 

each fiscal year thereafter subject to funding being approved by the City Council in 

each fiscal year. 

c. That the contingency of annexation of certain real property as previously 

67



2 

 

established in Amendment 102 of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget is hereby removed. 

 EFFECTIVE DATE.  The provision of this amendment shall be effective and operative 

upon execution of this Ordinance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on this the _____ day of ____________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Dane Haygood 

       Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes 

City Clerk 

68


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Backup to Council MInutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes January 19 2016
	B&P Minutes
	Library Board Minutes Oct 2015 (FY16)
	Library Board Minutes NOV 2015 (FY16)
	Library Board Minutes Dec 2015 (FY16)
	Event Permit - Shadow Barons
	Jubilee Festival Street Approval
	2016-03 - RES - Retire - donation-Drug Dog-2016
	Backup to 2016-03 - RES
	2016-01 - ORD - Park Ordinance  Amending Article 1 Section   15-10 (Park Rules - Ord. No. 2007-37) (3)
	2016-02 - ORD - Lodging Tax-Fence-Lott Park-Bethel Baptist Graveyard
	Backup to 2016-02 - ORD
	2016-03 - ORD - Recreation Equipment-LT to GF-correct Budget
	2016-04 - ORD - Sidewalks Improvements-LF-Ridgewood-to WorchesterDunbar Lp
	Backup to 2016-04 - ORD
	Adopted Resolutions & Ordinances 1-04-2016
	2016-01 - RES
	2016-02 - RES
	2015-74 - ORD
	2015-75 - ORD
	2015-76 - ORD
	2015-76 ORD
	2015-78 - ORD
	2015-79 - ORD




